UNITED NATIONS NATIONS UNIES

ECONOMIC CONSEIL NE—
AND ECONOMIQUE .
SOCIAL COUNCIL ET SOCIAL 15 Roveber 195

UNITED NATIONS CONFERUNCE ON ROAD AND MCTOR TRANSPORT

COMMITTEE I ON LECAL AND GENTRAL MATTERS AND DOCUMENTS

SUMMARY R=CORD OF THE EL®VENTH MEETING

Held at the Palais des Nations, Geneva,
on Monday, 5 September 1949 at 10 a.m.

CHATRMAN: Mr. MIKAOUI (Lebanon)
SECRETARY : Mr. HOSTTS
Contents:

CONSID"RATION OF D7:FT PROVISIONS FOR INSERTICN
IN THE CONVENTION ON ROAD TRAFFIC SURMITTED BY
THT "TORKING PARTY OF THE COMMITTSR pages 2 - 7



£/OONF.5/C.1/5R, 11 ,Rev,1
pare 2,

CONSIDERATION OF DRAFT PROVISIONS FOR INSERTION IN THE CONVENTION ON
POAD TRAFFIC SUBMITTED BY THI. WOKKINC PARTY OF THE COMMITTEE (Working
paper W/RT/22/L9).

Report by Acting Chairman of the Working Fartv.

Mr, VONK (Netherlands}, vho had been in the Chatr at meetings
of the Working Party during the absence of its Chairman, Mr, Rﬁmpler
(France), explained that the Vorking Party had discussed the propesal
of the United Kingdem representative that there sliould be inserted in
thie Convention a provision setting a limit to the time during which
drivers and vehicles should be considered as being in interndtional
traffic.  Altheugh that propnsal applied particularly to Chapters IV
and ¥ of the Convention, the Party had decided tc recommend that the
text which it had drafted to meet that aim (Werking Paper %/RT/22/L3,
sectien 1) should be inserted in Article I, se that it would apply to

the whele lonventicn, and not merely to Chapters IV and V thereof,

When considering the advisability of inserting in other chapters .
of the Convention introductiuns of the type which the Committee had
desided should be inserted ir Chapter IT (see Decument E/CONF,9/C.I/S2.8,
peges 5 and 7), the Party had deeided to reccmmend the inserticn in
article 20 of the text given in Section 2 of the Working Paper,

The draft Article 4 (Disputes) recommended by the Party had been
drafted on the basls of the correspending Article in the draft Convention

or Freedon of Information, ’

The text recommended by vhe rarty for insertlon in Article B
related only to the gquestion of which States should be invited to send
representatives to Conferences to consider proposed amendments te the
Coniventionj the Perty had not considered other questions raised Hy
Article B of the Secretariat, draft, since they wery clas-ly coannedcted

with Articles ¢ and D which had ntt been referred to the larty,

At a meeting held Lmmediately befere the present meeting of the
Committee, thc Werking Party had agreed that the draft of Article B
(Signature and Acceptance of the Convention) which it had prepared
(Working Paper W/R7/22/L9, page 2) should be amended by adding 4n
paragraph 3, after the word "Article,", the sgentence; “;t shall also
be oren Iror accessicn on behalf of any trust terriporiea of which the
United Hations is an a2#ninistrative authority"; and by transforming



E/COFF.8/C.T/3R,11, Rev.1
page 3

the last sentence of paragraph 3 into a new paragraprh L.  That text

had been drafted on the basis of corrcopending articles in the Conventiorn
en Freedom of Information. The Party had discussed at length the
advisibility of laying down that the Conventien -sheuld be epen feor
accession on behalf of the frec territory of Trieste, but, althou-h ne
firm decision had been taken an that point, it had been apparcnt that

the majerity were oppdsed to the inelusion of sueh a provision,

By including in Draft Artiecle G (Territorial Applicatidn) the words
"under the provisions of Article 2%, the Farty had endeavoured to obviate
diffieculties arising out of the fact that it had nct yot'been decided finslly
whish of the annexes should be obligatory,

Article 20, parageaph 2, (Working paper W/RT/22/L9, Sectien 2).

Mr. PANTELIC (Yugoslavia) said that he was opposed to the
inelusien %n paragraph 2 of Article 20 of the werds "at all times". If
they were includef and the Artiele were applied strietly, a driver in
a country fereign to him would nct even be able to proeeed to the nearest
garage if, as a result of an aceident, the vehicle he was driving eeased

to conform to the provisions ef Annex 8,

Mr, VONK (Netherlands) said that natienal autherities
customarily permitted both drivers of vehicles in international traffie
and drivers of wvehicles in tlielr own country to prececd to the n.arast
garage with due care, if, as a result of force maleure, the vehizle they

were driving ocased to conform to national regulationms,

The SECRETARY polnted out that, if the words "at all times"
were deleted, it might be argued that paragraph 2 of Article 20 would
apply to a motor vehicle or a trailer only at the moment it was actually

erossing an interuntional fronticr,

Mr, de SYDOW (Sweden), Mr. SCHAEPMAN (Netherlandsy Mr,
HOCKING (United Kingdou), Mr, FOLEY (United Ststes of imerica) and Nr.
HUBERT (France) said that they could agree to the deletion of the words
"at all times", since such deletion would in ne way change the meaning
of the text,

Mr, VOFGANTI (Ztaly) seid that Italian regulations,
corresponding to the provision in the draft of paragraph 2 of .Article <O

submitted by the Working Party, cuntained the word "constantly".



E/CONF.8/C.1/SR,11.Rev.1
page L

The Committee agreed to adopt the dralt of paragraph 2 of Article
20 submitted by the Working Party with the deletion of the words "at
all times", and to reguest the Chairman to_invite the Presiden of the

Conference to take steps to_ensure that that paragraph would be considered
egither in plenary or by Committee II, as the latter might deem aporopriate.

New paragraph to be added to article 1.  (Working paper W/RT/22/49,
Seetion 1).

Mr, AZKOUL {Lebanon) suggested thul it would be more apparent
that the words, which the Party had reccmmended should be incertud as
a new paragraph in Article 1, applied only to vehicles in international

traffic, il they wcre inserted in peragraph 1 of Article 1.

Mr, BUZZI-QUATRINMI (Austriz) asked whether the adoption of the
text proposcd would not be cquivalent to an agrecment that Contracting
States should rclinquish certain extra-territorial rights. If it were
adopted woruld diplomats be required to pass driving tests in the country
to which they were accredited at the expiry of the twelve-months period?
And would Governments of countries under military occupation which
became parties to the Convention be obliged to make drivers of the
occupation forces pass tests after they hed been in the country fo: more

than a year?

Mr. VONK (Nettierlands) said that since the text was draftoed in
a negative form, its adoption would not compel any Contracting State to
test foreign drivers remaining within its territory for s continuous
period exceeding one year; nor would it prevent any Contracting S5.ate
from testing them, If the text were adopted, a membe: of the diplomatie
corps in any Contracting State need not pass a test in that countrzy,

provided he did not remain there continuously for more than a year,

Mr, GOTTERET (Switzerland) fel® that the cxample given by the
Austrian representative was not very happily chosen,  The provisions of
the Convention would only apply to motor vehiclee, trailers or drivers in
international traffic; in Switzerland at least, diplomats accredited to

the Government would not be affected.

In replying to the direct question asked by the Austrian representa-
tive, he would like to make clear that the objecct of the Swiss authoritics
in inviting diplomats accredited to the Swiss Guvernment to comply with
certain formalitles, was to bring to their notice the special provisions of
Swiss traffic regulations and to draw their attention to the dangers of

mountain roads,



r/CONF,8/C,1/SR.11 Rev,1
page 5.

The CHAIRMAN said that the point ralsed by the representative
of Austria was extremely impeortzpt, since some npational authorities d4d
not. permit people with driving ilcenccs valid in ancthoer State, or even
with international driving permits, to drive in thelr territories without
a domestic permit, That concerned, not oniy diplomats, but also
tourists who enterad a foreign country by ear, It was closely
connected with the important question of whether drivers in a foreign
country were legully protected when they were invelved in an accldent.
But it might bc advisable to defer discussien of the point untll the
Committeec came to consider irtiele 22 of the ECE draft (Document

E/CONF.8/3).

Mr, BEST (United Kingdem) said that the adeption of semoc
such provisien as that in the new paragraph recommended for additinn te
iarticle 1 by the Working Farty was esgential; but, since it had been
driafted in 2 negative form, its adeption would not meie it eobligatery
for the authorities of Contracting Stotes to compel all foreign drivers
who remained in that State for a continuous period of more than one
year to take a test, Hs agreed with the Chairmman that it would he
advisable to defer discussion of the peint raised by the representative

of iustria until Article 22 of the ECE draft came to be discussed.

The Committee unanimously agreed: (a) to adopt the recommendaticn

of the VWorking Party that the text in section 1 of Worlkdng paper
W/RT/22/49 be inserted as an additienal paragrarh in Article ] of thg
Convention; and (b}, to discuss further when it came te consider
Artiele 22 of the ECE draft (Docunent 5/CONF.8/3) the guestien of the
driving permits of persons whe remsined for mowre than one year in g

countrv of which they were not natlonsls.

irticle A (Working paper W/RT/22/L49, Section 3).

Mr, AZKOUL (Lekanon) said that if the draft of Artiele A
submitted bv the Werking Party werc adopted, partiess to a dispute
concerning the &pterpretation ar application of the conventien would net
be compelled to refer the disnute'to the International Court of Justice,
il they agreed to try te settle the dispute by other means, but feiled
to do so, If the Committee wighed to r.commend that disputes should be

referred to the International Court of Justice, unlesa s¢ttled by other



E/CONP.8/C.I/5R,11, Rev.?
page 6

means, the words succeed in reaching agreement by ansther mode of
settlement” should be substitutsd for the words *agree to another
mode of settlement”,

Mr. BEST (United Kingdom) said that Contraeting States
should not be compelled to refer te the International Court of
Justice any dispute concerning the conmvention, Accordingly he
suggested the substitution of the word '"may" for thQ word "shall"
in the first line,

Mr, VONK {Netherlands) said that the Working Party had
considered that parties to a dispute cancerning the cqnvention
should first attempt ts settle it by negotiation; if they did net
succeed, they should attempt to setile it by mvans other than referring
it to the International Copurt of Juetiee; if they etill did not
succeed, then they should refer it to the International Court of
Justice. If the Working Party's text were adopted, a dispute might
be referred immediately to the International Court of Justice, but
others, and perhaps many others, might be settled by other means,
for example, by discussion at a mecting of the Inland Transport
Committee of the Economie Cemmissian fer Europe,

Mo, DOOT (Uidbed Kiugdoun) sald Uieb a dlepuis coucerndig
the osnvention should be referred %o the International Court of
Justice only if the parties therste cculd not succeed in settling it
by direect negotiation or other means,

Mr. SCHARPMAN (Netherlands) said that the text submitted
by the Working Party might give riee ta misunderstanding, and
proposed that it be amended by replacing everything after the word
"negotiations™ and the end of the third iine, by the sentence 'or by
any other mode of settlement agreed upen by the eontracting states '
eoncerned, shall be referred to the International Court of Justice

for deeigion',

Mr. FOLEY (United States of America) supported the proposal
of the representative of the Netheirlands.



E/CUNF,8/C.I/SR,11.Rev.1
page 7

Mr, LUKAC, Executive Secretary, pointed cut that at the
second session of the General issembly it hzd been decided that it would
be desirable to insert, particularly in conventions or treaties con-
cluded under the auspices of the United Nations, clauses providing,
without prejudice to Article G5 of the Charter, for the submission of
disputes which might arise from the interpretation or application of
such conventions or treavies, preferably and as far as possible to the
International Court of Justice (General Assembly Resolution 171 (IT) C.2).
The proposal of the rervesentztive of the Netherlands was in harmcny with

that decision.

Abdul Karim'SAFWAT Bey (Egypt) said that he could agr.. %> the
adoption of the draft of irticle A submitted by the Working Party,
but nevertheless preferred the text proposed by the represcntative

of the Netherlands, which was more logically drafted,

Mr, de SYDOW (Sweden) and Mr, BAMERJI (India) said that
they could agree to the adopiion of the principle in the text
proposed by the representative of the Netherlands,

Mr, BLONDEEL (Belgium) said that it should be msde clear
which party should refer to the International Court of Justice such
disputes concerning the convention as could not be settled by other

means.

Mr, PANTELIC (Yugoslavia) agreed with the United Kingdom
represcntative that parties to disputes concerning the ccnvention
should not be compelled to refer them to the International Court of
Justice, and supported his proposal that the word "may" should be
substituted for the word "shall",

Mr. SHAEPMAN (Ne*herlands) could not agree to the substi-
tution of the word "may" for the word "shall"; such an amendment

would fundamentally alter hin text,

The meeting roge at 1,15 p,m.





